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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

FORT TOTTEN

The Fort Totten State Historic Site, administered by the State Historical Soc-
iety of North Dakota, is one of the best preserved military posts of the Trans-Mis-
sissippi West dating back to the Indian hostilities era. Most of the buildings com-
prising the square surrounding the center of the post, remain intact.

Originally the drill and parade area enclosed by the square of buildings was a
center of activities for the fort. On the east side of the square were four company
barracks, behind which were located two mess halls, a well house and the guard
house. Opposite the company area on the west side was Officer's Row, centered by
the commanding officer's quarters. Flanking his quarters were a pair of Captain's
and First Lieutenant quarters and two Second Lieutenant's quarters. Standing on the
north side was a hospital, surgeon and chaplain's quarters, magazine and quarter-
master's storehouse. A dead house stood outside the northwest corner of the square
The south side included a commissary storehouse, baker's shop and adjutant's
office. Outside of the square were the stables and quartermaster storehouses,
sinks, bath house and other service buildings.

Excluding one company barracks, the square proper is complete as it appear-
ed when the post was closed in 1890, _One of the barracks was razed by fire, and
all but half of one mess hall, the dead house, well house and guard house were
eliminated during the Bureau of Indian Affairs occupancy. A gymnasium was con-
structed for the Indian school, roughly covering the former boundaries of the gutted
barracks and one mess hall. Also an addition connecting two of the company bar-
racks, and ftwa of the.oefficers gquarters-were made.

The State Historical Society site includes roughly the area designated, as the
fort square. Those buildings outside the square, on land still owned by the Bureau
of Indiap. Affaixs, have long been.removed. .- Major alterations have been made to
the interiors of the existing structures, as classroom and vocation training
facilities;wene needed for the Indian school. The extent of these modications can
only be determined by further investigation.
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»FORT TOTTEN
Fort Totten located on the south shore of Devils Lake was established on
July 17, 1867 by order of General Alfred H. Terry. It was one of a series of forts
estabhshed for the protectlon of an overland route extending from southern Minne-
sota into western Montana. The post was named in honor of Brevet Major General

~Joseph.Gilbert Totten, late Chief Engineer of the U.S. Army.

The or1g1na1 construction in 1867 was of a temporary nature, with crude log
structures comprising the post. Surrounding the outpost was a stockade of oak
logs 18 feet tall. On April 6, 1869 a joint resolution of Congress ‘authorized the
Secretary of War to construct a more permanent facility, however, construction
had already begun in 1868 prior to congressional authorization. Built 800 yards
south of the original post, the buildings were constructed of brick made in the
vicinity. This 1868-1871 development is the Fort Totten which stands today. It
has been called the best preserved military post in the Frans- ~Mississippi West
for the Indian Wars period.

In the 1870's the buildings at the fort mcluded officers quarters hOSpltal
office, magaZme storehouses, company barracks; mgss hall; eomnissdry,
baker shop and guard house. The post was constructed at an approximate cost of
$100,000.00 A corral and'stables were added to accommodate the vattle and
horses kept at the fort. Nearby a sutler's store and even a small brewery ap-
peared to serve the occupants.

Up until 1873 Fort Totten was used as an infantry garrison. At this time
Cavalry troops were added with the ass1gnment of Companies D and I of the Tth
Cavalry. Generally, until the closing of the military post in November 1890,
there were two or three infantry companies and one or two cavalry companies
manning the post.

Fort Totten was closely related to Indians and the Agency that adjoined the
post. A treaty in 1867 with the Slsseton-Wahpeton and Cut-Head Sioux brought
small bands into the area. In 1874 a school called St. Michael's Mission, near
the fort was established. When Fort Totten was abandoned in 1890 Congress ap-
proved the transfer of the plant to the Department of Interior for the establish-
ment of an Indian Industrial School.

In 1960 Fort Totten was turned over to the State Historical Society of North
Dakota by the Department of Interior, Bureau of Indian Affairs for preservation
as a historic site.
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